
 

 

Standards Committee 
 

Wednesday, 29th March, 2023 
6.00 pm 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
  
1.   Welcome and Apologies  
  
2.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 Minutes of Previous Meeting 2 - 6 
  
3.   Declaration of Interest  
 Declarations of Interest 7 
  
4.   Register of Interests - Update  
  
5.   Member/Officer Protocol - Update  
  
6.   Member Training Update  
 Report - Member Training update.March 2023 

Member Training 2022 - 23 
8 - 11 

  
7.   Work Program Discussion  
  
8.   Complaints Update  
  
9.   Any Other Business  
 
 

Date Published: Tuesday 21st March 2023  
Denise Park, Chief Executive 

 

Public Document Pack



Standards Committee 
Wednesday, 21st December, 2022 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, 21 December 2022 

 
 
PRESENT – Councillors, Parwaiz Akhtar (Chair), Lilian Salton, Mohammed 
Irfan, Neil Slater and Elaine Whittingham. 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE – Paul Fletcher  
 
OFFICERS – Asad Laher, Corinne McMillan, Laura Hodkinson and 
Shannon Gardiner   
 

RESOLUTIONS 
  

8   Welcome and Apologies 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.  
  
Apologies were received from Cllrs Samim Desai, Jim Casey, Kevin Connor, 
Saj Ali and Miranda Carruthers-Watt and Daniel Wilde.  
  

9   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 28th 
September 2022 were agreed and signed as a correct record. 
  

10   Declarations of Interest 
 
RESOLVED – There were no Declarations of Interest received.  
  

11   Register of Member Interests 
 
A report was submitted to consider the legal framework is applicable to the 
registration and declaration of member interest, and consider the new digital 
process for submitting and updating the Register of Members’ Interests. 

The current legal framework relating to members interests and standards is set 
out in the Localism Act 2011 (‘the Act’). Under the Act Councils are required 
to:  

• promote and maintain high standards of conduct by its members, and;  
• adopt a code dealing with the conduct that is expected of its members. 
  
In relation to the Code of Conduct (‘the Code’), the requirement is simply that 
a Council’s code is consistent with the following principles: 

• Selflessness;  
• Integrity; 
• Objectivity; 
• Accountability; 
• Openness; 
• Honesty; and 
• Leadership 
These principles are recognised as the Nolan Principles of standards in public 
life. 

Page 2

Agenda Item 2



Standards Committee 
Wednesday, 21st December, 2022 

The Act also requires councils to ensure that its code includes such provisions 
the council considers appropriate in respect of the registration and disclosure 
of both: 

• Pecuniary interests; and  
• Interests other than pecuniary interests. 
  
Pecuniary interests and the specific requirements are set out in the Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. The list of 
those matters coming within the definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
(DPI) is contained in Part 2 of the adopted Code (contained in Part 5, section 1 
of the Constitution).  

The Localism Act 2011 requires Members to notify the Monitoring Officer 
within 28 days of becoming a Member of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
(DPIs). In addition, if a Member is present at a meeting and they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter to be considered or being 
considered at the meeting, which is not yet registered, they must notify the 
Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days. These requirements are set 
out in the Code. The Codes also outlines that it is a criminal offence to:  

• fail to notify the Monitoring Officer, of any DPI within 28 days of election. 
• fail to disclose a DPI at a meeting if it is not on the Register of Members’   
Interests.  
• fail to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of a DPI that the Members’  

Interest has been disclosed at meeting but is not on the Register of Members’ 
Interests 

•participating in any discussion or vote on a matter in which the Member has a  
DPI,  
• Knowingly or recklessly providing information that is false or misleading in 
notifying the Monitoring Officer of a DPI or in disclosing such interest to a 
meeting.  
  
The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose an unlimited fine and 
disqualification from being a councillor for up to 5 years. 

The Council adopted a Code of Conduct in August 2012 in accordance with 
the Act, and since then some minor amendments have been made. The 
current version of the Code is published on the Council’s website and is also 
contained in Part 5, section 1 of the Constitution.  

In relation to the Register of Members Interest, Members are asked to 
complete a form adopted by the Council in 2012, which are then collated, 
scanned and published on the Council’s website. In accordance with the legal 
requirements referred to above, Members are also advised to notify and 
update any changes to the register immediately. Such changes could include 
change of employment/office/trade, change of ownership or interest in land, 
new sponsorships, membership of bodies, gifts/hospitality etc.  

At its meeting on 22 March 2022, the Committee were informed of a new 
process for Members to register their interests. This is through Council’s 
Mod.Gov system, which has a facility for registering interests for each 
Member, which is then published in a table format. Many councils are already 
using the Mod.Gov system to register and publish their Member interests. This 
system has now been set up by the Governance team and is accessible for 
Members to complete and update their interests without requesting a paper 
form. 

Page 3



Standards Committee 
Wednesday, 21st December, 2022 

Nathan Richards, Democratic Services, demonstrated the new process to 
submit a Member Interest through the Council website. The members of the 
committee agreed that the new process was quick and efficient to use.  

In order to assist Members, the Monitoring Officer has put in place 
arrangements for individual Members to receive guidance when registering 
their interests, as soon as they are elected to office. The completed register of 
interest would then be published via the Mod.Gov system. In addition, all 
members would be requested to notify the Monitoring Officer of any changes, 
and update the register of interest through the Mod.Gov system. An annual 
reminder will also be sent to all Members to review the register and update 
any changes.  
RESOLVED –  
  

       That the legal framework for the requirements to register interest and 
consider the new digital process for submitting and updating the 
Register of Member’s Interests.  

       That the digital process for submitting and updating the Register of 
Member’s interests be recommended to Council Forum  

  
12   Local Government (Disqualification) Act 2022 

 
The Committee was informed of the new grounds for disqualification from 
being elected or being a member of a local authority that have been 
introduced by the Local Government (Disqualification) Act 2022.  
  
The Act updates the disqualification criteria for local authority Members to 
explicitly disqualify individuals who are subject to relevant notification 
requirements or orders due to sexual offences such as Sexual Harm 
Prevention Orders and Sexual Risk Orders from standing for or remaining in 
office.  
  
Previously a Councillor would be disqualified from standing for election or 
holding public office if they had been convicted of any offence and had 
received a sentence of imprisonment (suspended or not) for a period of no 
less than three months or more in the five-year period before the relevant 
election.  
  
Recently new offences and sentencing regimes were implemented, meaning 
that some sexual offences, registration on the Sex Offenders Register and 
other offences such as anti-social behaviour do not result in a custodial 
sentence, e.g. they might require a notification or an Order may be made. 
Therefore, Councillors convicted of offences, which previously would have 
resulted in disqualification, were able to retain their role if elected or run for 
election even if recently convicted.  
  
The Act updates the disqualification criteria so that sexual offences that had 
unintentionally fallen out of the scope of the disqualification criteria were 
brought back into scope. The disqualification introduced by the Act does not 
operate retrospectively. Therefore, it does not disqualify a person who became 
subject to any relevant notification requirements or a relevant order before or 
on 28 June 2022.  
  

Page 4



Standards Committee 
Wednesday, 21st December, 2022 

Candidates for election to local government must declare they are not 
disqualified from standing using prescribed 'Consent to Nomination' forms at 
nomination. The briefing highlights that it is a criminal offence to make a false 
statement on nomination papers. 
  
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.  
  

13   New Council Values & Behaviours 
 
The Committee considered the new Council vales and behaviours and 
reviewed the Protocol on Members and Officer Relations.  
  
The Protocol on Member/Officer Relations (“the Protocol”) is contained in Part 
5, Section 3 of the Constitution. Its purpose is stated in paragraph 1.2 as: “…to 
guide Members and Officers of the Council in their relations with one another”.  
  
The Protocol covers the respective roles and responsibilities of Elected 
Members and Officers, the legitimate expectations of each other, and specific 
guidance on a number of issues that commonly arise, including an ‘Advice 
Note for Elected Members/Officers involvement in respect of family members 
and social care matters.’ Some of these expectations reflect the principles 
underlying the Code of Conduct for Members (“the Members’ Code”) and the 
Officer Code of Conduct (“the Officer Code”). The shared object of these 
codes is to enhance and maintain the integrity of local government and the 
Codes, therefore, demand very high standards of personal conduct. Although 
the Members Code has been subject to some amendments since its formal 
adoption in 2012 following recommendations by the Committee, the Protocol 
has not been reviewed for some time.  
  
At its meeting on 28th September 2022, the Committee considered a review of 
the Member’s Code and were presented with the work undertaken in relation 
to the Council’s organisational values: Trust, Respect, Ambition, Collaboration, 
Kindness (TRACK). A special Member Training session was arranged to be 
held on 12 October 2022 to present that Council’s organisational values and 
behaviours, and it was resolved by the Committee to consider the review of 
the Code in conjunction with these Council’s values and behaviours after the 
training session. 
  
At the training session is was stated that these values and behaviours had 
been cascaded to all staff who are committed to them in all aspects of their 
work, and in particular when engaging with customers, other officers, Elected 
Members, and external and partner organisations.  
  
It is also noted that the principle, “Respect for Others” has been incorporated 
into the Members Code with an explanation: “Members should promote 
equality by not discriminating unlawfully against any person, and by treating 
people with respect, regardless of their race, age, religion, gender, sexual 
orientation or disability. They should respect the impartiality and integrity of the 
authority’s statutory officers, and its other employees.”  
  
As well as reviewing the Members Code, the Committee could also consider 
the adoption of Council’s Values and Behaviours as a reciprocal 
understanding in their engagement with officers. In doing so, the Committee 
could suggest recommendations to the Protocol.  

Page 5



Standards Committee 
Wednesday, 21st December, 2022 

  
Such recommendations could include incorporation of the ‘TRACK’ values and 
behaviours in the Protocol. The Standard’s Committee’s role and function as 
delegated by the Council is contained in the constitution. It includes assisting 
councillors and co-opted members to observe the Code of Conduct. The 
Committee also has a function to monitor the operation of the Council’s 
standards arrangements and make appropriate recommendations to the 
Council as it considers appropriate with respect to the maintenance and 
review of the Code, together with such other codes, procedure, protocol or 
guidance as the committee considers appropriate. 
  
The Members of the committee discussed the new Council values and 
behaviours and raised how it would be implemented as well as monitored. It 
was noted that Officers would work closely with Members from all parties for 
their views and feedback.  
  
RESOLVED – That the Protocol on Member/Officer Relations to be reviewed 
and considered at the next committee meeting on 29th March 2023 and 
recommend any amendments to full Council for approval.  
  

14   Complaints Update 
 
The Monitoring Officer, Asad Laher, updated the committee on complaints that 
had been received since September 2022.  
  
It was noted that there were no complaints.  
  
RESOLVED – That the update be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: …………………………………………………. 
 
Date: ……………………………………………………. 

Chair of the meeting  
at which the minutes were confirmed 

 

Page 6



   

D:\blackburn\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\2\0\AI00003024\$dnwnusp0.doc 

         
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN  

 
ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA 

 
 
Members attending a Council, Committee, Board or other 
meeting with a personal interest in a matter on the Agenda 
must disclose the existence and nature of the interest and, if 
it is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or an Other Interest 
under paragraph 16.1 of the Code of Conduct, should leave 
the meeting during discussion and voting on the item. 
 
Members declaring an interest(s) should complete this form 
and hand it to the Democratic Services Officer at the 
commencement of the meeting and declare such an interest 
at the appropriate point on the agenda. 

 
 

MEETING:       STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
      
DATE:                          
AGENDA ITEM NO.:   
 
DESCRIPTION (BRIEF): 
 
NATURE OF INTEREST: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY/OTHER (delete as appropriate) 
 
 
SIGNED :  

 
PRINT NAME:  

 
(Paragraphs 8 to 17 of the Code of Conduct for Members of the Council refer) 

 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 

Version 1 1 19/03/2023 
 

 
 

 

 
REPORT OF: The Monitoring Officer                                                                         
                                
TO: Standards Committee 
 
ON: 29 March 2023 
 

 
 
SUBJECT:       Member Training - Update 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

To update the Committee of the Member Training Programme for 2022/23  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
The Committee is asked to: 
 

- note the update of the Member Training Programme for 2022/23 and in 
relation to the mandatory training attendance and provide feedback and 
suggestions.  

- note that a further report will be presented to the Committee at the next 
meeting to consider the Member Training Programme for 2023/24.   
 

 
 

 
3. BACKGROUND   

 
The Committee at its meeting on 29 June 2022 considered the Member Training 
Programme for 2022/23.  The programme included items that this Committee 
considered mandatory and areas that the committee considered necessary for 
members to be aware of in carrying out their duties as a Councillor.  
 
The Committee agreed the continuation for all Members to undertake the mandatory 
e-learning packages: Civil Contingencies for Elected Members, DOJO Cyber 
Security Awareness and Information Governance for Elected Members. 
The Committee also approved for Equality & Diversity Training be arranged ‘in 
person’ during the course of this municipal year. The Committee also endorsed a 
message to all members to take the opportunity to review the LGA elected member 
course portfolio accessible direct to them via the MeLearning Portal, and access the 
training and development which they consider would best assist their continued 
effectiveness as a councillor. 
Finally, the Committee also approved an outline local programme of additional 
‘online’ and ‘in person’ training events as set out in the Appendix to this report to 
support elected members of the Borough to fulfil their duties and responsibilities as 
a councillor. 
 
 The Committee requested reporting of councillor’s attendance on training courses 
provided, particularly the DOJO Cyber Security Awareness and Information 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



 

Version 1 2 19/03/2023 
 

Governance for Elected Members mandatory courses.  The attendance levels were 
varied and councillors need to be further encouraged attend, particularly the online 
courses.   In relation to the mandatory DOJO Cyber Security Awareness and 
Information Governance for Elected Members mandatory courses, IG officers 
arranged special training sessions (via MS Teams) for those councillors who were 
unable to undertake their training via the MeLearning portal.   Two in-person 
sessions on the important topic of Equality, Diversity & Inclusion were held in 
February 2023 as well as an in-person session in October 2022 in relation to the 
Council’s New Values & Behaviours, hosted by the Chief Executive. 
 
For the new councillors elected in May 2022, a special in-person induction session 
was arranged, with introductions from Directors and their service areas. 

 
4. RATIONALE 

Members training and development is under the remit of the Standards Committee 
and the programme is agreed and updated each year. The programme includes 
items that this Committee has considered as mandatory and areas that the 
committee felt necessary for members to be aware of in carrying out their duties as 
a Councillor.  
 

 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
Members are expected to ensure they are regularly updated with key knowledge 
of main legislation relating to their work as Councillors. These courses assist the 
delivery of that objective. Attendance at mandatory courses whilst not being a 
legal requirement is seen as good practice. 
 

 
6. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

Member training and development is necessary for providing them with key 
knowledge, and enabling them to undertake their public roles. The Council should 
therefore put in place adequate provision for training and development for its 
members (particularly the newly elected members), and provide support and 
encouragement to members to undertake the training provided.   

 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

None. 
 

8. CONSULTATIONS 
The Committee hold a role in member training and development and will be 
considering the Member Training programme for 2023/24.  Chief Officers will also 
be consulted for topics of training relating to their operational areas.    

 
 
Chief Officer/Member 
Contact Officer:  Asad Laher, Deputy Director – Legal & Governance and 

Monitoring Officer. 
 
Date:     20th March 2023 
 
Background Papers:  None 
     

Page 9



Member Training 2022/23 

 
Date 

 
Event 

 
 

Time & 
Venue/online 

 

 
Presented/Led by 

 

 
7 September 2022 

 
Council Tax Collection and 
Benefits 

 
 

 
Andy Ormerod 

 

 
19 October 2022 

 
Local Government Finance:  
Session One: 
Financial Strategy and Medium-
Term Financial Plan. 
 

  
Dean Langton 

 
 
12 October 2022 

 
New Values & Behaviours (link 
with the Code of Conduct & 
Member: Officer protocol) – in 
person 
 

  
Denise Park 

 
30 November 2022 

 
Elections Changes (confirmed)  

 
Denise Park 

 

 
7 December 2022 

 
Risk Management  

 
Jen Czapla (Zurich) 

 

 
16 January 2023 

 
Emergency Planning, Business 
Continuity, Communications and 
H&S. (Teams) 

Teams 
 

Sarah Riley / Jenna 
Russett-Knott 

25 January 2023 

Local Government Finance:  
Session Two:  Local Government 
Finance Settlement 
 

Teams 

 
Dean Langton 

 
 
 

2 February 2023   
EDI Training (in person) 

TH/2/A (Meeting 
Room A) 

 
External Provider 

(Mandy Singh) 
 

 
8 February 2023 

 
EDI Training (in person) 

TH/2/A (Meeting 
Room A) 

 
External Provider 

(Mandy Singh) 
 

21 February 2023 IG / Cyber Security  Teams Lee Gardiner 

Page 10



23 February 2023 IG / Cyber Security Teams Lee Gardiner 

 
8 March 2023 

 
Capital Borrowing & Treasury 
 

TH/2/A (Meeting 
Room A) 

 
Dean Langton 

15 March 2023 
Highways - Envirocrime & 
Enforcement 
 

TH/2/A (Meeting 
Room A) 

  
Tony Watson  

TRAINING SCHEDULE FROM APRIL 2023 

 
 

 
Training on Safeguarding 
 

  
Joanne Siddle 

 
 

 
Corporate Parenting 
 

 
 

Joanne Siddle 
 

 
 

 
Schools/Education – Supporting 
Vulnerable Learners 
 

 
 

Joanne Siddle 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 11


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	3 Declaration of Interest
	6 Member Training Update
	Member Training 2022 - 23


